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ernment has stated that there is no 
need for training more doctors in our 
country. These institutions are star- 
ted without prior permission of ei- 
ther the Central Government or the 
All India Medical Council. The sys- 
tem of charging such capitation fees 
cannot stand the canons of justice, 
either social or economic. 

I, therefore, request the Union 
Government and specially the Health 
Minister to direct the Maharashtra 
Gov-ernment to stop these capitation 
fee medical colleges. If the State 
Government is interested, in rural 
people, it may increase the seats in 
the existing medical colleges or start 
medical colleges for tbe poor stu- 
dents, to be given medical education 
free of cost, in those areas where at 
present the fees are from Rs. 200 to 
Rs. 2000 per year. Admission to the 
medical colleges must be on merit 
and it cannot be on the basis of capa- 
city to pay. I, therefore, request 
the Government to stop this flood- 
gate of corruption and see that medi- 
cal education is properly given to the 
people, 

PAPER LAID ON THE TABLE —
Contd. 

Report   (1984)   of  the  Eigth  Finance 
Commission and related papers 

THE MINISTER OF FINANCE 
(SHRI PRANAB KUMAR MUKHER- 
JEE): Sir, I beg to lay on the Table 
a copy (in English and Hindi) of the 
Report (1984) of the Eigth Finance 
Commission, together with an Expla- 
natory Memorandum on the action 
taken by Government on the recom- 
mendations made by the Commission. 
[Placed in Library. See No. LT-8400/ 
841. 

 

 

MOTION   RE:   WHITE   PAPER   ON 
PUNJAB AGITATION 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: As 
the House knows, the discussion on 
the White Paper on the Punjab Agi- 
tation is slated to be under Rule 176. 
It is felt that it would be more ap- 
propriate if such a discussion is held 
on a Government motion. I have 
consulted Shri Lal K. Advani and 
he has no objection to this. I, there- 
fore, call upon Shri P. Venkatasub- 
baiah to move the motion. I may, 
however, make it clear that the motion 
will only be talked out without being 
formally adopted. 
Shri Venkatasubbaiah. 
THE MINISTER OF STATE IN 
THE MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS 
(SHRI P. VENKATASUBBAIAH): 
Mr. Deputy Chairman, I beg to 
mo ce: 

"That the White Paper on the 
Punjab Agitation laid on the Table 
of the Rajya Sabha on the 23rd 
July 1984 be taken into considera- 
tion." 
SHRI LAL K. ADVANI (Madhya 

Pradesh): Mr. Deputy Chairman, I 
welcome the fact that this House has 
been given an early opportunity to 
discuss this important document. In 
fact, the practice of laying White 
Papers in Parliament needs to be 
adopted with greater frequency than 
it has been till now. It is a device, and 
a very wholesome device, which the 
House of Commons takes recourse to 
much oftener than we do. I was 
going through the past White Papers 
issued here. This is perhaps our 
-twelfth White Paper. Though the 
total number is twelve, I notice that 
five out of these White Papers related 
to China, the exchanges that took 
place between India and China, the 
notes exchanges, the memoranda ex- 
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[Shri Lal K. Advani]. 
changed, and the letters exchanged 
between India and China, during the 
pre-1962 period. 

Having mentioned China, I would 
also say that "those documents were 
really very, very useful in understan- 
ding the different points of view of 
India and China. For all times to 
come scholars who write on Sino- 
Indian subjects would find in those 
documents source material which 
would not be available anywhere else. 
And they were comprehensive, they 
were candid, candid in this respect 
that it was through these Papers 
that for the first time Par- 
liament came to know about 
a letter written by the Prime Minis- 
ter to his counterpart in China, 
in which he had written that 
he was so keen to maintain cordial 
Sino-Indian relations that he had not 
referred this matter even in Parlia- 
ment or even in the country and 
thought that the matter would auto- 
matically be resolved. Pandit Nehru 
wa., referring to the maps published 
by China which were guility of car- 
tographic aggression on Indian ter- 
ritory and which subsequently be- 
came formal physical occupation of 
Indian territory. 

When I consider those White Papers 
and Compare it with this document, 
I think that this is a complete dis- 
apponitment; it is a total let-down. 
Any dafreful readier of newspapers! 
or magazines which have been writ- 
ing on Puniab for the last four years 
so many articles, so many analyses, 
would say that there is nothing in 
this which is new. I have read it 
somewhere or the other. I may not 
be able to remember where I have 
read it. But I know everything that 
is published in this has been pub- 
lished in the press already. This is 
not co'mprehensive, this is not candid. 
The two attributes this that I expect 
of a White Paner if it is to be the 
basis of a wholesome, purposive, de- 
bate, are both missing. This is nei- 
ther comDrehensive nor candid. When 
I went through it, the only thing new 
that I found was, perhaps, in one of 

the annexures. I had not read this 
in any newspaper. In Annexure 4 
apart from the list of tripartite meet- 
ings with which I was familiar and 
which appeared in the press also, 
mention has been made of the meet- 
ings taken by the Prime Minister. 
There is a list also of nine secret 
meetings. And what is given? The 
date, the venue, the participants, and 
nothing more. Now, this is the only 
new information provided to me. I 
gather from this that just one week 
before the Army Operation in Amrit- 
sar, that is on the 26th May 1984 a 
secret meeting took place in a Guest 
House in New Delhi in which Mr. 
G.S. Tohra, Mr. P.S. Badal and Mr. 
S. S. Barnala of the Akali Dal and Mr. 
P. V. Narasimha Rao, Mr. Pranab 
Mukherjee and Mr. Shiv Shanker of 
the Government of India participated. 
Now, I would ask the Minister of 
State for Home Affairs present here 
does this much information enlight- 
en us and help the Debate? I would 
be keen to know, the world would be 
keen to know, Public would be 
keen to know, Parliament would be 
keen to know, what happened just 
one week before this crucial opera- 
tion between thje Government and 
the Akali Dal. What was the pro- 
posal made by the Government or 
what was the proposal made by the 
Akalis? Why did nothing come out 
of it? All that we know about the 
secret meetings in the past was when 
the Minister used to say 'informal 
discussions are going on and we are 
in touch with them'. This is under- 
standable. I am not objecting to that. 
Now when the White Paper js pub- 
lished unless you tell me what 
precisely happened there, I am not 
able to judge. Therefore, I would go 
by whatever little I know of the 
Government or the Government 
policies or the attitude of the Akalis 
all through. On that basis I will make 
my observations. 

Incidentally -I did not want to 
comment on this- when I see these 
serw-et meetings! land the names of 
participants therein, I come to the 
conclusion that Mr. P. C. Sethi ceased 
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to be the Home Minister of the coun- 
try long before he was formally di- 
vested of his responsibility and Mr. 
Narasimha Rao has been the de- 
jacto Home Miinster for a long time. 

Sir, in the last four years Punjab 
has been going through a nightmare. 
It has been a terrible nightmare. 
This document brings it out 
somewhat graphically; it collates 
all the facts. puts them in 
serial    order and arranges 
them chapter-wise. Nothing beyond 
that. All that has appeared in the 
press has been collated here and 
arranged well. I do not have much 
quarrel with what has been stated. 
My quarrel is with what has not been 
stated. And very many things have 
not been stated. This makes this 
document lopsided, partisan and, in 
nn way, misleading. Half truths are 
often much more misleading1, than 
outright lies. My complaint against 
this White paper is precisely that. 

The optening paragranh of; this 
White Paper says that the situation 
had become very grave in June, 1 
will, quiote from the White Paper. 
The  first   paragraph  says: 

"...in the ultimate analysis they 
cofnfJined", to jprojidus a complex! 
wabj of violence and terror that 
threatened to undermine the social, 
political and economic stability 
not only of Punjab but the whole 
country..." 

That the situation did arrive at the 
policies pursued by the Government 
of India in respect of Funjjab for 
the last four years had brought not 
only that State, but the whole nation 
virtually to the brink. I wanted the 
White Paper tg explain why| this 
happened. Why? I am not able to 
fufcl any explanation absolutely no 
explanation. It 4s absolutely; silent 
as to how and why Punjab and the 
country were brought to the brink. 
That the situation did arrive at the 
brink is admitted. As the first sen- 
tence Itself says that it was not only 
hje sapial, political and economic 
stability of Punjab but that of the 
whole country was threatened. This 

is a hard fact. I am not disputing 
that fact. Therefore, I would say, in 
the month of June Army action be- 
came inevitable. My friend Shri 
Khushwat Singh is not here. I wish 
he were here. He is among those 
who have strongly criticised Army 
action, But he is among those who 
even though critical of Army action 
had said that action taken by the 
Government immediately after the 
murder of Atwal would be quite 
right ___  

SHRI P. N. SUKUL (Uttar Pradesh): 
He suggested even martial law. You 
remember his words? 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: I am 
referring to his reaction after the 
Army action. I would say that Army 
action was inevitable, and unavoid- 
able. This is almost the unanimous 
view of the c6untry. There may be 
some nuances here and there, there 
may be variations in reactions here 
and there. The biggest critic of Army 
action in so far as Members of Parlia- 
ment are concerned whom I have 
read is Shri Khushwant Singh. He 
has said that this Army action was 
wrong  ........   but action should have 

been taken after the death of Mr. 
Atwal. And, when he says that after 
the death of Mr. Atwal action should 
have been taken, I do not see what 
action could have been taken except 
to chase the assailants, chase the 
murderers, right inside the premises 
of the j Golden ffemple Complext, 
After all, everyone knows that they 
came from within the Golden Temple 
Complex and attaced Mf. Atwal, 
killed him, on the staircase of the 
Temple while he was bringing prasad 
after returning from his prayers and 
that the assasins went back into the 
Gotten Temple Complex. This Sa 
mentioned in this White paper also 
and it has not been disputed by any- 
one. So, if action was to be taken 
aglainst the murderfefrs', against the 
killers, of Mr. Atwal at that time, it 
would have mleant entering the 
Grtlden Temple. Though the army 
was not there, maybe the police, 
maybe the CRPF, maybe the BSF, 
'    maybe the paramilitary forces avail- 
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[Shri Lal K. Advani]. 
able on the spot at that time would 
have done this duty. But, basically, 
when he objects to the entry inside 
the Golden Temple Complex I say 
that that objection does not stand 
when he says that action should have 
been taken after the death of Mr. 
Atwal. 

This document in a sense is a justi- 
fication for the army action. My 
complaint is that no justification is 
necessary for that. It ls almost uni- 
versally accepted. But this document 
fails to explain the Government's in- 
action for four years and there is no 
explanation for this fa this document. 
Perhaps no explanation is possible. 

In the first case, justification is not 
necessary which has been given and, 
in 'the second case, no -explanation is 
oilere 1 because no explanation is 
possible. 

Sir, in this House, we passed a re- 
solution  on  the  29th  April  1982  and 
it has been given here as Annexure 
9,  in this White    Paper,    in    which, 
apart from expressing anguish at the 
happenings   in  Punjab,   this      House 
affirmed that the law would take its 
course. I would like to quote it here: 
"This   House   reiterates   that   the 
law  shall  take  its  course  to bring 
the culprits to book speedily    and 
trusts   that   all       the   communities; 
and   every  section   of  the     public 
opinion   in  Punjab  will  strive    to 
maintain  the  traditional  communal 
harmony." 
This was in April 1982, more than two 
years ago. It was more than two years 
ago that this was made, that this 
solemn promise was made to Parlia- 
ment. It is a very rare occasion when 
an unanimous resolution is passed. 
What did the Government do after 
that? What did the Government do to 
see that the law took its course? My 
charge is that the law not only did 
not take its course, but those in the 
Government saw to it that the, law 
could not take its course, did not 
take its course. 

This  is  my  charge    and    unless  a 
satisfactory  explanation   made   avail- 

able  my  charge   will   stand.     There 
should   be  some   explanation   offered 
as  to why the  law did rtpt  take its 
course.  What was. the hesitation?  In 
this whole document, there is no re- 
ference whatsoever  to  the      declared 
policy of Government, namely "Come 
what may, we shall not enter a place 
of worship, even to  arrest    a    mur- 
derer".  This was  the  policy  adopted 
by  this   Government.     Sometimes  it 
said so explicitly and sometimes      it 
said   this   by   implication.   Sometimes 
it even went to the extent of accus- 
ing my party or the Lok Dal saying 
that we want them to enter the place 
cf worship,' but they were not going 
to do it.  Today,  almost the      entire 
Sikh  community,  most  of  the   Sikhs 
that one meets even very reasonable 
Sikhs who are otherwise very critical 
of Bhindranwale's    actions    and    ut- 
terances think that something terribly 
wrong  has happened. When one dis- 
cusses   with  them   and   asks      them, 
"Are  you  with   them?",   you    find   a 
mental   block   somewhere   Arguments 
and logic do not register. That men- 
tal    block    is    the    result    of    the 
Government's!      own       declarations, 
which     kept  on    declaring,    "Come 
what may, we will not do it and we 
are not going to do it." It could have 
very well maintained,  "After all, we 
do not want to do it. Unless the SGPC 
or the Akali Dal or the others enable 
us to remove these criminals from the 
Guradwara   we   shall   have   to     take 
aclion". After all, this has never been 
tlie issue in the past. In the days of 
Pandit Nehru,  in  the    days  of    Mr. 
Kairon,   there   hald   been      occasions 
when the police      had     entered the 
Golden Temple Complex and arrest- 
ed   culprits,   arrested  offenders,  from 
inside the  Temple.  It was  never  an 
issue.  But  you  made  it  an  issue  by 
repeatedly   ma,intaining      this.   Yet 
there is not a word about this in this 
White  Paper. 

Not even one reference. No explana- 
tion.   Nothing to offer. 

Sir, I am of the view that in the 
Punjab situation • there were three 
guilty parties:   the extremists led by 
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Bhindranwale, the Akali Dal; but the 
third guilty party was the Govern- 
ment, the ruling party; whereas what 
this White Paper tries to make out is 
that the Government was not at all 
at fault, it was absolutely innocent, 
lily white pure, and it is only the 
extremists and only the Akali Dal 
that was at fault. The only difference 
between this White Paper and I 
statement made by Mr. Venkata- 
subbaiah or Mr. P. C. Sethi earlier 
was that in the past Ihe Government 
used to attack only the Akalis, not 
even Bhindranwale. He was scrupulo- 
usly spaced. You go through all the 
statements made by the Home Mini- 
ster during he past four years. This 
omission was very conspicuous For 
the first time, in this White Paper, 
that is, after Bhindranwale is dead, 
there is criticism of Bhindranwale 
and his terrorist activities. 

Sir the crucial question in the con- 
text of Punjab is who created Bhin- 
dranwa^; who was responsible for 
his meteoric rise? This is the crucial 
question. Who created the Dal 
Khalsa which became the body in 
whose name all these murders and 
Violence were committed? Who creat- 
ed them? Sir, as I said in the begin- 
ning, I have not much to comment on 
what has been saW. But even so there 
is one major thing which I would 
like to comment upon. In my view 
Bhindranwale was a non-entity in 
the public life in Punjab till 1980-81; 
he did not matter at all. And his 
rise in Punjab's politics owes to ona 
bizarre episode, one single episode, 
which catapulted him into the cen- 
tral stage politics in Punjab_in 1981, 
after the murder of Lala Jagat 
Narain. There is a mention of that 
here. I find that there is a mention 
of it on page 24, paragraph 5. I 
quote: 

"Soon thereafer, Lala Jagat 
Narain was murdered in September 
1981 hecause of his criti cism of the 
murders  of Nirankaris...-' 

The  White Paper  goes on   to .say—I 
would like to quote  it, and I would 

like the Home Minister to take note 
of what I say: 

"Shri Bhindranwale was arrested 
on September 20, 1981, in connec- 
tion with the murder. There was 
large scale violence in which police 
were attacked with deadly weapons 
near Chowk Mehta. The police re- 
sorted to firing which a judicial 
enquiry found to be justified. The 
same day four persons were killed in 
Jalandhar and several injured by 
a gang of motorcycle riders. Thus 
started the cult of random killings 
by motorcyclists which was to pla- 
Punjab for the next three years. 
On September 29', 1981 an Indian 
Airline plane was hijacked to 
Lahore by some Sikh extremists, 
who are still in Pakistan in spite of 
the matter having been taken up 
with the Pakistan Government.' 

That is all. There is no reference, 
mind you, in this particular para- 
graph or in this particular Chapter 
to the release of Bhindranwale. 
Bhindranwale is arrested; this is 
mentioned. After that there is hi- 
jacking, there is a spree of killings 
and murders by motorcyclists which 
was to p'ague the State, for three 
years. But there is no mention that 
thereafter Bhindranwale was set free 
7 or 8 days after the hijacking. No 
mention. Th's is mentioned quietly, 
in the calendar of events given at the 
back. The calendar of events does 
mention that on such and such date 
Bhindranwale was set free. But in 
this paragraph what has been done is 
that at the end of the above para- 
graph it is stated: 

'All this formed the backdrop for 
the start of the Akali Dal agita- 
tion.' 

So all this, Bhindranwale's arrest, 
Bhindranwale's men going on a hijac- 
ing spree and calling for his re1ease 
and murder let loose—this is the 
backdrop of the Akali agita- 
1 P.M. tion!' I regard this as patent- 
ly dishonest. It is not mere- 
ly an omission. I call it a dishonest 
way of representing things. 
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[Shri Lal K. Advani] 
Sir, jn fact, my complaint is even 

on the title of this White Paper. In 
this House, I have had an occasion to 
demand a White Paper on Punjab ex- 
tremism and on Punjab violence. Mr. 
Surjeet was here. Every time he made 
a speech on Punjab, he reiterated this 
demand that there should be a White 
Paper on Punjab extremism, on Pun- 
jab violence, on Punjab terrorism. 
Now, this is a White Paper on the 
Punjab agitation. It is not a White 
Paper on Punjab violence or Punjab 
terrorism or Punjab extremism. We 
have had so many agitations through- 
out the country. But they have 
never occasioned a White Paper. They 
have never deserved a White Paper. 
In this particular case, even the choice 
of this caption and the whole tenor 
of this is that the whole thing owed 
to the Akali Dal agitation. At one 
place, the White Paper itself inadver- 
tently perhaps that this is not true 
admits. I am quoting from page 3, 
paragraph 4, which says: 

"The essence of the problem in 
Punjab was not the demands put 
forward by the Akali Dal in 1&81, 
but the maturing of a secessionist 
and anti-national movement with 
the active support of a small num- 
ber of groups operating from 
abroad.' 

This is admitted. Even though it is 
admitted, the caption of the White 
Paper and the tone of the White 
Paper has aimed at indicting the 
Akali Dal alone. As I have said, I 
and my party hold the Akali Dal 
guilty. I hold it guilty as a co-accus- 
ed. I won't spare it. Some of my 
colleagues in the opposition may be 
inclined to say that the Akali Dal is 
not at fault at all and it is only the 
Government that is at fault. I would 
never say that. After all, they have 
been with me in the Government. I 
know that during the three years 
they were with me in the Govern- 
ment, they never raised any of these 
issues. Therefore, when they raised 
it, I criticised them and I attacked j 
them.   T won't spare them.
 
] 

SHRI HARVENDRA SINGH HANS- 
PAL (Punjab): They raised the 
issue. 

 
SHRl LAL K. ADVANI: Inter-state 

disputes are not peculiar to Punjab 
and Haryana. Inter-state disputes are 
there In so many parts of the coun- 
try. They have been lingering on 
for years on end; for decades in fact. 
Belgaum is there between Maharash- 
tra and Karnataka. It has remained 
unsolved for 3 decades. But that does 
not create the kind of problem that 
was created here. When I say that 
they never raised it. I am referring to 
some of the other issues that they 
raised. For instance, they said that 
Amritsar should be made holy city. 
I told the Local-Self-Government 
Minister, Mr. Balwant Singh, who was 
there in the tripartite meeting that if 
in Hardwar no one can sell meat or 
liquor, well it is not a decision of 
the Central Government. It is not 
a decision even of the State Gov- 
ernment. The local municipality has 
done it. You were a Local-Self- 
Government Minister for 3 years and 
at that time why did you not do it? 
So far as these matters are concerned, 
I am clear in my mind that the 
Akali Dal had been vacillating, had 
been wavering. A mention of it is 
there in the White Paper. The most 
crucial example of the Akali Dai's 
vacillation was their taking recourse 
to a very unreasonable demand. They 
raised it at the end, namely, that 
article 25 should be amended. There 
is no mention of Article 25 in the 45 
demands that have been listed. It 
came much later. Whenever they 
have made such unreasonable de- 
mands, we have criticised them and 
we have attacked them. We who 
are in the opposition may not agree 
on many matters. But in the tripar- 
tite talks, I have this satisfaction that 
all the opposition aqted in concert 
and made the Akalis abandon un- 
reasonable postures. 
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In the beginning, there was a dis- 

cussion on the Centre-State relations. 
The Government agreed that they 
would have this matter reviewed. 
They would set up some body. At 
that time, the Sarkaria Commission 
had not been formed, it was announ- 
ced much later. But, in principle, it 
was agreed that the issue of Centre- 
State relations would be referred to 
some quasi-judicial body. The Akalis 
insisted that whenever this is done, 
nothing more." Ultimately they agreed 
Anandpur Sahib Resolution. The 
Opposition stood firm and said, no, no- 
thing doing, there will be no refer- 
ence to the Anandpur Sahib Resolu- 
tion. Opposition parties may have dif- 
ferent views on the Anandpur Sahib 
Resolution. But so far as my Party 
is concerned, we strongly hold that 
India is one country, one people, one 
nation. We cannot think in terms 
of any proposal, any resolution which 
conceives of India as a multi-national 
State. No. Not even indirectly. In 
fact, I am of this view that the ano- 
malous position that we have in 
Jammu and {Kashmir also should be 
rectified at the earliest. It is a his- 
torical aberration and it should be 
rectified at the earliest. But that 
apart, when the Opposition insisted 
that there is going to 'be no reference 
to the Anandpur Sahib Resolution, 
they agreed ultimately. They ultima- 
tely agreed. And they said, it is all 
right, drop it. 

Then we came to the river water 
issue. They insisted that the agree- 
ment with Rajasthan should be re- 
opened. The entire Opposition said, 
no, nothing doing. Of course, we 
heard Mr. Mathur the Chief Minister 
of Rajasthan. We heard Mr. Bhairon 
Singh Shekawat, leader of the Oppo- 
sition there. And they were able to 
convince the entire conference, apart 
from the Akalis, that this was not fair, 
this would be unjust to the people of 
Rajasthan. It would be unjust and 
unfair also because we had.secured 
substantial aid from the UN agencies 
on the basis of the assurance that we 
would be providing water to Rajas- 

than. This went on for two days. The 
Akali Dal Was insistent. They cited 
experts to prove how the 1955 agree- 
ment was unfair to Punjab. We said, 
'whatever you say, this matter was 
not going to be re-opened.' Ultimately 
they agreed. Similarly, on the terri- 
tories issue, they wanted a portion 
from Rajasthan—Ganganagar—a por- 
tion from Himachal Pradesh, and a 
portion from Haryana-Sirsa. We said, 
"we can discuss only Chandigarh. 
Discuss only Chandigarh, and Abohar- 
Fazilka or the related issues. And 
nothing more." Ultimately they agreed 
to abandon other claims. Now, there 
is a reference to these things—some 
of these things, if not all—in this 
White Paper. But at the same time 
it is mentioned that when they went 
back, the Akalis went back upon what 
they had said. I do not dispute what 
you have said. They may have gone 
back. They were wavering and vacil- 
lating all along and their conduct also 
had an explanation which has also been 
given in this White Paper. The ex- 
tremists may have been angry with 
you and me. But they were always 
more angry with the Sikhs who criti- 
cised them. Any Sikh who criticised 
their action was the first target of 
their attack. You may call it pusil- 
lanimity. You may call it weakness 
on the part of the Akali leadership 
that they were not able to face this 
challenge and they were cowed down 
by these threats. But my confirmed 
view on the basis of my participation 
in the 83 Tripartite Talks is that if the 
Government was so minded, the issue 
could have been clinched. The Akalis 
though vacillating wanted a solution. 
After al', you made your announce- 
ment in respect of the religious de- 
mands made by the Akalis. The 
Akalis did not agree to it. You made 
your decisions nevertheless. What- 
ever you felt was right, whatever you 
felt could be conceded, you conceded, 
and you made a unilateral announce- 
ment. In January/February, 1983, a 
unilateral declaration from your side 
that we are prepared for this, we are 
willing to do this in respect of river- 
waters and territory could have clin- 
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ched the issue so far as the Akalis are 
concerned though I do not believe 
that the kind of dynamism the extre- 
mist forces have acquired by that 
time would have died down simply 
because of that. You allowed that to 
grow to unmanageable dimensions. 
. Bhindranwale could have been 
arrested in time. At that time the 
Central Government was blaming Mr. 
Darbara Singh for not arresting 
Bhindranwale. And Bhindranwale 
came from Amritsar to Delhi, from 
Delhi to Bombay in a trimphant yatra, 
with sten-igun-toting armed guards 
around him. The Central Government 
did nothing. 

This is the 'Illustrated Weekly    of 
India' dated June 17-23.   I did not get 
a copy of it here in Delhi. I enquired 
from my agent and he said that the 
copy is not  available because  it has 
not reached Delhi; it has been with- 
drawn in Bombay itself.    First I was 
told it has been banned.    I wodered 
how it could be banned.    And why? 
I became even more particular to get 
it. Then I was told that the    publi- 
shers and tbe management have with- 
drawn  this  copy.    Anyway,    I have 
procured  a     copy  of it  and  I have 
gone through it. It is a damning indi- 
ctment of your party, and some seniors 
in the party.     If any self-respecting 
man were there, and he feels it was 
wrong,  he  would   go  in  for  a  libel 
suit.    This is  a major journal; it is 
not a rag which can be ignored, per- 
sons who have been named ought to 
file a suit of defamation.   If it is true, 
there   is a   direct  charge   that     Dal 
Khalsa   Is  your   creation;   I   am  not 
naming... 

SHRI SYED SIBTEY RAZI (Uttar 
Pradesh):   It   is   misleading. 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI; Maybe: 
but it is there. And, therefore, I 
expected... 

SHRI SYED SIBTEY RAZI: So 
many things are there in such papers; 
it is not an authentic document, and 
you are charging the Government on 
a misleading story. 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: It is there- 
fore I expected the White Paper to 
throw light  on these  matters. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN; Please 
complete now. 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI:   Sir, there 
is   a   reference   here   to   the   foreign 
hand in all that has happened. Publi- 
cly,   statements   have   been  made   in 
which   countries  have  been     named— 
by   senior   leaders      of   your   party. 
Pakistan   has   been  named;   America 
has been named, and within the coun- 
try,   among  the   States,   Jammu   aiid 
Kashmir has been named; Dr. Farooq 
Abdullah has been named.   These are 
things,  perhaps,     about  which     the 
Government   can   be   understandably 
discreet.  I can appreciate discretion. 
You need not say things about which 
you are not cent per cent sure.    But 
there  has  been  a lot  of  talk  about 
the  camps  organised,  camps  organi- 
sed not only in various parts of our 
country   but   also  in   Pakistan.       In 
fact,  I have     seen press reports    in 
which some places of Pakistan were 
mentioned where camps were organi- 
sed.    I  believe     that arms  can    be 
smuggled.   The mere finding of arms 
with Pakistani markings is not con- 
clusive  evidence  of guilt.    After  all 
you  have   ordnance   factories's   arms 
there.     That does not mean   that or- 
dnance  factories     helped  the  extre- 
mists in getting those arms. Arms can 
be smuggled and can be procured and 
bought.  But  camps      cannot      be      or- 
ganised   or  held  without   the  know- 
ledge of the Government there.   And 
so,  if camps  were held  in  Pakistan, 
I think the Government has not been 
fair by the country in having a friendly 
visit by Mr. H. K. L. Bhagat to Pakis- 
tan right at  the time when you  got 
this  information.  Either you have no 
information:   in that case it is a diff- 
erent matter and in that case I would 
sav you  should  not make      insinuations. 
You  should   not  even  talk  about     a 
foreign hand.    But if you talk about 
tbe foreign hand and if you are pub- 
lishing a White Paper which is to be 
discussed in Parliament, in all    fair- 
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ness to Parliament, you must reveal 
that foreign hand, and not make 
general vague allegations and take 
shelter behind public interest in con- 
cealing  all that. 

Therefore, I said yesterday, un- 
less you bring out a supplementary 
to this White Paper which shows 
your role in Rindranwale's rise, which 
shows your role in the creation of 
Dal Khalsa, which reveals if any 
foreign power has been meddling in 
this matter, unless you bring it out, 
this is totally an incomplete White 
Paper. 

Here at one place you have said, on 
page 57. 

These extremists got sophisticated arms 
by developing clandestine links with sour- 
ces within the country'. Now, when you 
say that sophisticated arms were procured 
by these extremists by developing clandes- 
tine links with sources within the country, 
what is the hesitation in naming those 
sources at least? Which are thes.- sour- 
ces? You should come out with it. Let 
us expose those people. In such matters 
of national security I would be with you. 
Even in regard io Jammu and Kashmir, if 
the Jammu and Kashmir Government was 
guilty of colluding with anti-national ele- 
ments and if the Government had been 
dismissed on that ground, I would have 
certainly asked for evidence, and if I felt 
convinced, I would have supported your 
Government. But you cannot remove that 
Government, you cannot dismiss that Gov- 
ernment by procuring defections and then 
publicly go round talking about the anti- 
national acts of the Government. 

(interruptions) 
SHRI SYED SIBTEY RAZT: Sir. I 

stand on a point of order. He is again 
trying to bring in Jammu and Kashmir. 
Yesterday, there has been trouble in the 
House on this issue. 

{Interruptions) 
SHRI HANSRAJ BHARDWAJ (Madhya 
Pradash);    I would like to put the record 
straight.   Let Mr. Advani reply to this. 
{Interruptions) 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Why are 
you interrupting like th.s? You wil have 
your say. 

(Interruptions) 
SHRI HANSRAJ BHARDWAJ: When 

Mr. Bahuguna was seeking election to the 
Lok Sabha from Dehra Dun side, Major 
Gen. Shahbeg Singh was his election in- 
charge. 

{Interrwptions) 
SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: 1 hope, the 

Minister ol State would enlighten this 
House about all these issues. The issues 
in Punjab are of great moment. There 
has been a lot of talk about applying the 
healing touch in Punjab. This is welcome. 
But ti 1 now, there has been no evidence 
of it.  

Now, take, for instance, the Kar Seva. 
It was an occasion for bringing together 
all people, and making the people feel that 
here is something in which, the whole 
nation, the whole country, could contri- 
bute. After all, the destruction of Ihe 
Akal Takht pained not only those who 
proclaim themselves as Sikhs, but even 
those, like tbe rest of us, who may not be 
Sikhs, but who worship the Granth Sahib 
and Guru Nanak. I come from a State 
where, with most people their scriptures 
and rituals are sikh scriptures and 
rituals. The destruction of the Akal 
Takht pained all of us, caused anguish 
to us and we felt that when the time 
comes to reconstruct the Akal Takht, 
the Kar Seva would be done in a manner 
as to bring all people together. I do not 
know what happened, how it happened. 
But I think, judging by the press reports, 
the Akali Dal has not played a happy 
role in this regard. The SGPC's role, also 
has not been a happy one. But does that 
justify, the Government going in for a 
device which seeks only to divide the 
community? On the face of it, this is 
what appears to have happened, that 
we are trying to divide the community 
In some places, we are dividing parties. 
In some places, we are dividing families. 
Tn some other places, we are dividing 
communities. This is not a right approach 
in so far as the question of the healing 
touch is concerned. 
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So far as this While Paper is concern- 
ed, I would like to run up thus, if you 
go through the White Paper, even the 
most ardent critic would admit that the 
Army action was unavoidable. But at the 
same time, even the most ardent admirer 
of the Government would admit that the 
situation was totally avoidable, that such 
a situation would not have arisen, had 
action been taken at the appropriate 
time. Thank you, Sir. 

SHRIMATI AMARJIT KAUR (Pun- 
jab): Mr. Deputy Chairman, Sir, the 
White Paper on the Punjab agitation, 
which has been presented by the Govern- 
ment of India, is a sober account of the 
events which have been taking place in 
the Punjab, covering the period from 
April, 1978, to 6th June, 1984. This 
White Paper puts into a proper perspective 
the sequence of events, which had led the 
Government of India to reluctantly order 
the Army to flush out all anti-social and 
anti-national terrorists from all places of 
worship in the Slate of Punjab and the 
Union Territory of Chandigarh. 

At the very outset I would like to com- 
pliment the Government of India for putt- 
ing forward a clean and an unbiased 
report, making no excuses for itself nor 
hiding the fact that the entire episode was 
a painful duty which was performed with 
a very heavy heart. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can 
continue after lunch. 

 
The House then adjourned for 

lunch at twenty-one minutes past 
one of the clock. 

The House re-assembled after lunch at 
twenty-one minutes past two of the clock— 
The Vice-Chairman (Shrimati Margaret 
Alva) in the Chair. 

SHRIMATI AMARJIT KAUR: Madam. 
Vice-Chairman, as I was saying before 
the House rose for lunch, the White Paper 
on the Punjab agitations as presented by 

the Government of India is a sober ac- 
count of events which have been taking 
place in the Punjab covering the period 
from April 1978 to 6th June, 1984. The 
leading of this Paper puts into a proper 
perspective the sequence of events which 
had led the Government of India to 
urgently order an army movement to flush 
out all anti-social and anti-national terro- 
rists Irom a place of worship in the State 
of Punjab and the Union Territory of 
Chandigarh. 

At the very outset, I would like to com- 
pliment the Government of India for putt- 
ing forward a clean and unbiased report 
making no excuses for itself, nor hiding 
the fact that the entire episode was a 
painful duty which was performed with a 
very heavy heart. But since the stakes 
were too high and the country's unity 
was being shattered, the action became a 
must. 

From the introductory chapter of this 
White Paper on Punjab we get a clear 
and concise vision of the exact feelings 
experienced in the past three years by all 
secular-minded people all over the country. 
The subsequent chapters have exposed in 
detail the exact designs of a group of 
Sikhs led by Mr. Jarnail Singh Bhindran- 
wale to create a Khalistan irrespective of 
the cost in innocent human lives and the 
unity of the country. It further exposes 
the undemocratic meanderings of the Akali 
Dal and its socalled moderate leadership 
who were constantly tripping over their 
own big feet while trying to justify their 
political stunts in an effort to establish 
themselves after their electoral defeat in 
1980. Under the garb of their Dharam- 
yudh they created a Frankenstein Mr. 
Bhindranwale and tried to use him to fur- 
ther their own ends, but instead found 
themselves competing with him and being 
eventually swallowed by him. They creat- 
ed a mirage for themselves that turned 
into a dream world for the fanatic. They 
put into disrepute a community so justi- 
fiably proud of its achievements since its 
inception some 600 years ago. And it is 
to this end, Madam, that I would like to 
address this august House, 
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As it so prevails in every community in 

our Indian society so also is 99 per cent 
of the Sikh community as patriotic as the 
best from within it. That every Sikh is 
an Indian first is an obviousness, unfortu- 
nately to be mentioned repeatedly because 
of the mad misdeeds of a few amongst us. 
I repeat this fact today because I am in 
the process of trying to comprehend a 
mental block and the closed door attitude, 
developed within a large section of Sikh 
intelligentsia after the army action at the 
Golden Temple in Amritsar. That the 
fact that this Temple of our belongs to 
the whole nation is of least consequence to 
our intellectuals now. 

He tends to see the ghost of Hindu 
communalism around every bush, and 
compounds this further by steeping himself 
in the fumes of ritualistic dogmas adher- 
ing himself to the letter rather than the 
spirit of the law. He is deliberately nudg- 
ing himself backward into the illogical 
orbit of the seventeenth century concepts 
of time and beliefs—and this, just when 
we are about to enter the twenty-first 
century. 

It cannot be denied that the amalgam of 
the evil forces of communalism, sectarian- 
ism, separatism and egoism did exist 
amongst a small section of my community. 
This evil combination did give birth to a 
Bhindrawale and did shroud the boundar- 
ies of most of our important Gurudwaras 
all over tlie Punjab. Nor can it be denied 
that this small section of our Sikh com- 
munity over-awed the majority of our 
community and reduced us into a hoplcsi 
mass of confused people. Neither can 
we deny that we were helpless witnesses 
to the merciless murders of innocent 
Hindus and Sikhs, all in the name of reli- 
gion—the arson, dacoities and the lootings 
of public and private properties under the 
the aura of religion—the shattering of the 
entire economy of the State of Punjab and 
holding it to ransom—all under the garb 
of religion. Can my intellectual friends 
deny that whenever some brave, democrati- 
cally-minded Sikh stood up to question the 
barbaric acts, duly sanctioned by the 
author of "Hit-Lists"—living in the safety 
of the   Akal Takht at Amritsar—he was 

shot dead as a traitor to the community? 
The shooting of Sikhs by this fanatic was 
his design to subvert the inherent courage 
of the Sikh community as a whole and 
reduce us into a community of cowards 
under his subjugation. Under this all- 
powerful "Hit-List" he stopped the thought 
process of the Sikh intelligentsia. This 
"Hit-List" conjured up the picture of the 
menacing shape of the slotted stcn-gun 
which was enough to have the desired 
effect of stopping any resistance to the 
cancer eating into the very bowels of the 
Sikh community. 

I concede that most of the Sikh intelli- 
gentsia and the  intellectuals did see  the 
ominous signs of    communalism   evolving 
within our community, yet they    conven- 
ient ly  shifted their gaze and took shelter 
under the argument that the    Akali  'de- 
mands were Punjabi demands and, there- 
fore, a total surrender by    the    Govern- 
ment of India to the "Dharam Yudh-' of 
the Akalj  Dal was the only solution to 
keep the creeping evil of communalism at 
bay.    I do concede that a large number 
of our enlightened intellectuals   consisting 
of dynamic journalists, retired heroic Ser- 
vice Commanders, eminent retired ludges, 
highly placed Civil    Servants,   bureacrats. 
Members of the    State    Legislature   and 
Members of Parliament   have all    spoken 
very eloquently,    logically     and    bravely 
against the terrorism stalking the State of 
Punjab for the past six years.   I also con- 
cede that this eminent galaxy of the Sikh 
community, in so doing, did so from the 
safety of their drawing rooms and their 
offices.   None of these selfsame Sikhs had 
picked up enough courage to go alone or 
in a collection of tens, hundreds or thou- 
sands— as a "sangat"—to the Akal Takht 
to request or order    Mr.    Jarnail    Singh 
Bhindrawale and his murdering henchmen 
to  vacate  their  sacrilegious occupation of 
this our most sacred Gurudwara.    T am 
convinced  that  the  Sikh  intelligentsia  did 
realise that Ihe issue had in reality become 
a   "Sikh   issue"   alone—for  the  Sikhs  to 
decide for themselves and by themselves— 
for our head  priests to guide and ensure 
from the scriptures and for the "Sikh San- 
gat" to enforce. This was not an      issue 
to be left for the Government to solve: 



251      Moiion Re. White Paper        [RAJYA SABHA]         on-Punjab Agitation 252 

[Shrimati Amarjit Kaur] 
We Sikhs should "have had the courage to 
solve it ourselves. In this, Madam, I am 
as guilty as the next Sikh, because I did 
not have the courage to go to the Golden 
Temple to set my house in order. Like 
others I was quite content to let the Gov- 
ernment cleanse my home. 

The others like Sant Harchand Singh 
Longowal, Mr. Badal, Mr. Tohra, Mr. 
Talwandi, Mrs. Rajinder Kaur et al and 
more, became pawns in a game which 
they had started. They are as guilty of 
the crimes committed against the Sikh 
faith and the unity of the country as was 
the 'Frankenstein' they created. In recent 
times, they along with their partners in 
the Opposition used to harp in a 'Goeb- 
belian's manner that Mr. Bhindranwale was 
a plant of the Congress(I), as Mr. Advani 
mentioned, Yet, it was they who had 
asked for his unconditional release in the 
first point of the revised list of fifteen de- 
mands given to the Government in Octo- 
ber, 1981. as is mentioned in this White 
Paper in Annexure IL When Mr. Bhin- 
dranwale came to Delhi to disrupt the 
Nirankari Samagam, it was they who dec- 
lared that Sant Jarnail Singh Bhindrawale 
was one of them, and that there was a 
concerted conspiracy by the Government 
of Tndia to assassinate him, that if this 
was done, there would be an open war 
between the Sikh community and the 
Government of India. Whatever their 
reasons for their constant change of stands, 
one thing stands out clearly: they were 
totally consumed by him. 

Every struggle single leader of the Akali 
Dal, all the Sewadars including the five 
Head Priests of the Golden Temple, every 
member of the SGPC and every all-seeing 
educated pilgrim, whether he belonged 
to the profession of journalism, armed ser- 
vices, Civil services, business, agriculture or 
politics, is equally guilty of condoning the 
sacrilege committed by Mr. Bhindranwale 
in the Golden Temple, because they did 
not expose or fight, as a matter of princi- 
ple, the occupation of it. The Akali Dal 
and the SGPC have by this act forfeited 
their iight to speak for and on behalf of 
the simp'e Sikh folk who trusted them to 
be have without fear, and safeguard their in- 

terests as a guardian. The Sikh community 
as a whole expect that at least the Head 
I'I ies's must be above the fear of man. But 
they became 'soundless wonders'. For them 
to now sound off that the 'Kar-Seva' wiH 
only be done under their guidance and or- 
ders, sounds most hypocritical. A big 
thing is now being made of the 'Sikh, 
Sangat' after June 6, 1984, but prior to 
this date, no one ever mentioned it. It was 
just Mr. Longowal as the dictator and Mr. 
Bhindranwale as something super to that. 
Now these- discredited appointees an.d their 
discredited appointers want to impose their 
newly found will on us of the Sikh Sangat. 
At least now let the Sikh intellectual get 
out of his mental block and his drawing 
room, and give a lead to the community 
in normal common sense values. Let them 
condider that since we knew in our own 
hearts that our self-imposed silence in- 
advertently caused the desceration of om 
pieces of worship, where is the necessity 
of a healing touch for us, where do we re- 
quire it to touch. Our hearts or our minds, 
or both? If we care to ponder, we will see 
that it must come out of ourselves to heal 
ourselves; no external forces are going to 
count. Today we feel that our sentiments 
have been hurt by the Army action. But 
if we ponder on this aspect also, we will 
find that sentiment must necessarily go 
had in hand with sensitivity, that without 
this ingredient, sentiment becomes a hollow 
word. If this be true, where was our sen- 
sitivity when Hindus and Sikhs alike were 
shot dead as though there was a general 
animal hunt going on in the who'e of Pun- 
jab I think it is about time that we moved 
out of our own shells and participate in 
the rebuilding of a shattered Punjab and 
her society. In this, I am hoping that my 
honourable colleague, Sardar Khushwant 
Singh, will leave for a moment his role 
of Henry VIII and take on the mantle 
of the great reformer, Martin Luther. 

The time has come; Sir, to amend the 
Sikh Gurdwara Act of 1925 and incor- 
porate an unambiguous clause that clear- 
ly States that all elected members, office- 
bearers and employees of the S.G.P.C. 
cannot, under any circumstances, indulge 
in speak for or hold any post of a poli- 
tical nature and that if a member, as an 
employe?, wishes to do so, he must first 
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resign hb post in the S.G.P.C. The funds 
and the working of the S.G.P.C. must now 
be opened to public scrutiny and to Gov- 
ernment auditing every year. The findings 
may be published in the form of a gazette 
and in the media for the benefit of the 
Sikh public every year during the budget 
period. In Ihe alternative, if the majority 
of the Sikh community so desires, to ad- 
minister their gurudwaras themselves ac- 
cording to their own genius, then, they must 
be so allowed by repealing this Act from 
the Constitution of India. This will and 
the constant accusation that the Govern- 
ment of India is always interfering in 
Sikh religious affairs. 

Another important matter, Sir, that 
must com- undei th; immediate considera- 
tion of the Government is the fact that it 
must introduce a clear and visible law 
tha! prohibits temples of all faiths from 
being used as sanctuaries to hide anti-social 
and anti-national elements and being used 
to store leathal weapens except those de- 
clared by the Government as having his- 
torical value. We can no more depend on 
the unwritten aspects of accepted norms. 
Visibility  has   become  the  norm. 

And finally, Sir, I again admit my guilt 
of not having the courage to face this evil 
force which resided in the Akal Takht 
prior to the 6th of June, 1984. But because 
of this I will not allow my mental process 
to be blocked, distorted and take on to 
i.*c'f a persecution complex. I will be doing 
an injustice to myself if I allow my king 
size ego to feel deflated because of cer- 
tain human errors committed by me and 
o hers. It will be my Io' to search myself 
for a healing touch, and once having found 
ji. help others to find it. I wi'l not search 
for excuses because that will distort my 
view and reasoning power. Rather I wi'l 
look at issues from a human and a truth- 
ful angle, from an angle that is good fe>r 
my society and therefore good for the 
country. 

We must now resolve that never again 
will we Sikhs allow people from within in- 
to warp the essence of our faith and minds 
and diminish our grand image in the eyes 
of the world. I know a lot of my Sikh 
brothern are not going to take kindly to 
whal I have said today. But if they care of 

reflect, they will see the truth for them- 
selves, and I will be happy if they will 
just admit it to themselves alone. 
Thank you. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): I request the hon. 
Members to stick to the time-limit because 
there are many speakers. Mr. Mohanan. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN (Kerala): 
Madam, Vice-Chairman, I thank you for 
giving me this opoprtunity to speak on 
White Paper on the Punjab agitation. At 
last the much awaited Whi^e Paper has 
come with a long tail, a small head und 
without a body. Of course, the paper is 
white but the letters are printed in black. 
So literally half of the paper is white 
and the other half is black. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): The print is black. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: That is the 
black deeds. Madam, it was expected that 
the Government wi'l give a complete pic- 
ture of the happenings in Punjab for the 
'ast two or three years through his much 
awaited so-called White Paper but unfortu- 
nately disappointed the truth loving and 
democratic-minded people of this country 
In till it is one sided, distorted, mislead- 
ing and in many ways confusing also. 

In my opinion, I would like to make it 
clear in the beginning itself that it is no 
use of debating now whether the use of 
the Army to flush-out the terrorists and 
establ ish law and order had become ne- 
cessary or not. We have to see the total 
effect of the developments on the situation 
in Punjab and the countiy as a whole. The 
Army action on the 6th June, 1984 ind 
after cannot be taken in isolation to what 
has been happening for more than two 
years now. So, the question before us now 
is whether whatever happened in the 
Golden Temple and other parts of Punjab 
State should have been avoided or not. 1 
have no doubt about it. My answer is 
positive. Yes. my answer to this question 
is that il could have been averted. Why 
and how? I am going to substantiate it 
through my speech. You please wait. 

While reiterating our constant condem- 
nation of the terrorist activities of killing 
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innocent people and raising separatist 
slogans we expressed our strong feelings 
over these tragic happenings. This blood- 
shed could have been avoided if only the 
Prime Minister accepted the proposals of 
the Opposition parties for an amicable 
settlement on the Punjab issue. 

The forces of terrorism and separatism 
have to be fought ruthlessly. We agree 
that by converting the Golden Temple 
complex into an arsenal and a shelter for 
the terrorists and anti-social elements, 
they have not only tarnished the image 
of the great Golden Temple but also the 
image of the whole Sikh community in 
this country. I have no difference of 
opinion in this regard. Not only that, it 
brought the Sikh believers into shame 
because the places of worship had been 
converted into a shelter for the terrorists 
who were openly advocating killing of in- 
nocent people. 

In this context, Madam, I have no 
sympathy with the Akali leadership or 
SGPC authorities of the Golden Temple. 
During the present movement the Akali 
party has been demarcating itself from the 
activities of the extremists who were in- 
volved in killing of innocent people. But 
they knew that extremists were operating 
from the premises of the Golden Temple. 
While they were objecting to the entry of 
the police into the Golden Temple, did 
they not have an obligation and responsi- 
bility not to allow the criminals to find 
shelter in the Gurudwaras and made the 
premises to store all kinds of weapons. 
Yes, they have had a moral obligation and 
responsibility to do that. That is not being 
done in keeping with the sanctity of the 
Golden Temple who allowed the terrorists 
to install the machine guns even in the 
central room of the Akal Takht the highest 
seat of the Sikh religion 7 Nobody else. 
These people are responsible or they were 
mej-ely silent spectators of these terrorists 
activities there. These questions were not 
answered. The Akali leadership was claim- 
ing that their movement was peaceful. In 
the beginning it was right. But what about 
the parallel movement based on terrorism, 
violance and killing of innocent people? 
There was no open denunciation from 
the Akali leadership of all these activities. 
In fact, whenever terrorists were caught, the 

Akali leaders defended them as innocents. 
They demand the storing of arms and 
harbouring of anti-socials and terrorists 
inside Gurdwaras. We know there were 
strong differences between the Akali 
leadership and Bhindranwale. But none of 
them had the courage to denounce the 
terrorists and their activities. Why? In 
fact, after a certain stage, the Akali leader- 
ship themselves became prisoners of the 
terrorists and the anti-social gangs inside 
the Golden Temple. How and why? And 
who were responsible for such a tragic 
situation? The responsibility of the Gov- 
ernment is no less than that of the Akali 
leadership. The Government's real rivals, 
and the Congress (I) party's real rivals 
were not hBindranwale and his gang. The 
main opponents, the main rivals of the 
Congress (I) and the Government in Pun- 
jab were the Akali party. 

Madam, now I am coming to the White 
Paper, there is nothing in this White 
Paper regarding the question of growth 
of extremism, as my esteemed colleague 
Mr. Advani, has already stated on the floor 
of this House. It is deliberate—we can 
understand it because if the growth of 
extremism in Punjab is to be traced, wc 
are bound to come to the conclusion that 
the Congress (I) Party cannot avoid its res- 
ponsibility in this regard. Till the Congress 
(I) Party brought Bhindranwale into the 
limelight of politics to fight the Akalis, 
he was little known even in Punjab. With a 
view to building up an alternative to the 
Akali leadership in Punjab, the Congress 
(I) Party brought him into politics, I 
charge. 

SHRI P. N. SUKUL :    How? 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: I am coming to 
that. Please wait, my friend, Mr. Sukul, f 
am coming to that. I will not run away. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH (West Bengal): 
Mr. Sukul knows it also. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: I would like to 
know from the Congress (I) leadership 
who drafted him for campaign in the 
1980 Lok Sabha election? Is it not a fact 
that he openly campaigned for ihe present 
Congress (I) chief in Punjab, Mr. R. L. 
Bhatia and the former Lok Sabha Speaker, 
Mr. G.S. Dhillon? Can you deny it? 
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SHRI VISHVAJIT PRITHVIJIT SINGH 
(Maharashtra): We do deny it. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: These are facts 
before us. And this was at a time when 
he was openly advocating the killing of 
Nirankaris and indulging in criminal acti- 
vities. Again in the June, 1980 Assembly 
elections, he was a campaigner for the 
Congress (I) Party. Is it not a fact that 
he openly campaigned for Mrs. Bhinder? 
Can you deny it? 

SHRI VISHVAJIT PRITHVIJIT 
SINGH : We do deny it. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN : The facts are 
there.   But you can deny anything. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH : You can even 
deny the existence of this building. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: It was an open 
fact that the political mentor of Bhindra- 
nwale was none other than this Congress- 
(I) and its leadership. Now you are paying 
the price for that ugly political conspiracy. 
Above all, in 1981 with Bhindranwale 
visited Delhi and Bombay with his armed 
bodyguards with unlicensed arms in open 
jeeps and trucks, who arranged for his re- 
ception in these cities? 

He was camping in Delhi for more 
than ten days as the guest of the Cong- 
ress-I supported Delhi Gurdwara Pra- 
bandhak Committee. Everybody knows 
this, under the very nose of this Central 
Government. At that time he was a crimi- 
nal. These are facts. But there is no 
mention about all these facts in this so- 
called White Paper. (Time-bell rings) Why, 
Madam? 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): I just want to 
point out that each party has got a fixed 
time.    You have now left three minutes. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: I would like to 
put some straight questions in this regard 
to the Government and the ruling party. 
Number one: Is it not a fact tbat P. S. 
Bhinder was sent to Punjab to make a 
rapproachment with Bhindranwale? There 
is no answer to this question in this 
White Paper. Mr. Narasimha Rao, I 
put this question straightway. Then, num- 
ber two:   Is it not a fact or is it not in 

the knowledge of the Government thai 
many officials were in touch with Bhindran- 
wale with the blessings of this Govern- 
ment? Is it not a fact that even when 
the people intervened and handed over the 
extremists, they were not touched? Is it 
not a fact that Bhindranwale and his Chief 
lieuten..^t were released at the behest of 
the Central leaders including the Prime 
Minister? When Akalis demanded 
amendment to Article 25 of the Constitu- 
tion, Parliament unanimously condemned 
this Because it was communalising the 
whole politics. Is it not a fact that the 
Prime Minister and the Home Minister 
promised that amendment to Article 25 
would be made ? These are all facts. 
Can you deny them ? (Interruptions) 
There is no mention about these facts in 
this White Paper. That js why I am 
posing this question. From all these ac- 
tions of this Government and the Cong- 
ress-I it was clear that the narrow politi- 
cal interests of the Congress-I always had 
the supremacy over national interests. 
The Government was prepared to settle 
with Akalis if they were prepared to share 
power with Congress-I in Punjab. The 
Government was even prepared to settle 
it with Bhindranwale, forgetting the harm 
he had done, if he was prepared to help 
the Congress-I to fight Akalis to perpe- 
tuate its rule in Punjab. These are facts. 
Nobody can deny? 

Now, I would like to open to the chap- 
ter of negotiations. There was a long list 
of events in this White Paper.. . 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): But now you have 
to close your chapter. You have already 
exceeded your time. 
SHRI K. MOHANAN : No,... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): You have already 
taken 15 minutes where as you were allot- 
ted only 13 minutes, 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: Just give me 
five to six minutes more. ... 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH: How much 
time was given to Mrs. Kaur? 

636 RS—9. 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA) : The Congress 
Party has got 2-112 hours.  (Interruptions) 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: Anyway, 
Madam, It was claimed by the Govern- 
ment that in the tripartite and bipartite 
meetings, throughout the negotiations, they 
had express their readiness for a settle- 
ment. The Prime Minister had said on 
2nd Juno 1984 in her broadcast to the 
nation: 

'Whenever a settlement seemed in sight, 
they came up with fresh demands or har- 
dened their attitude on matters earlier 
agreed on. This is half truth. It is 
rather distorted. This statement was 
made with the deliberate intention of con- 
cealing the policy of drift by the Govern- 
ment. I am prepared to establish this fact 
which nobody can deny. 

Everybody knows that in the beginning 
the agitation started with 45 demands. 
After submitting their memorandum to 
the Government, they started negotiations. 
At that time the Government did not find 
a single demand acceptable. Then the 
Akalis started their movement on the 3rd 
August, 1982. At that time Shri Parkash 
Singh Badal in a letter addressed to all 
opposition parties was made their position 
clear on the various demands. He had 
brought down the number of demands to 
ten. Four of them were religious and six 
concerned the whole of Punjab. This was 
a big change from their list of original 
demands. On the basis of their new de- 
mands there were enough chances to come 
to an agreement. But the Government 
missed that opportunity deliberately. The 
Government was not prepared to come to 
an agreement with the Akalis only because 
of their own political reasons. 

Then the Akalis intensified their morcha 
in a big way. That it gathered momen- 
tum. They mobilised people behind them 
and tens of thousands of Akalis courted 
arrest. At that time their movement was 
quite peaceful. The Akali leadership was 
fully in control of the movement. In this 
movement there was no upper hand of the 
extremists. That happened later because of 

 the intransigent attitude of the Govern- 
ment to the demands raised by the Akalis. 
These are the facts.... 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): These are facts and 
therefore you need not repeat them. 
Please conclude. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: We want to 
tell the truth to the people. These are 
not mentioned in this so-called White 
Paper.   That is why I am narrating this. 

Through the good offices of the former 
External Affairs Minister, Shri Swaran 
Singh and my Party leader, Shri Harkishan 
Singh Surjeet, an understanding was arriv- 
ed at on 2-11-1982 and on the 3rd Nov- 
ember a statement was to be made by 
the Home Minister on the floor of the 
Parliament. But the statement made by 
the Home Minister was different from the 
understanding that had been arrived at. 
Why did the Government back out from 
that agreement? That was the beginning 
of the political game played by the Cong- 
ress© leadership in Punjab. Following 
this the Akalis decided to announce a new 
phase of agitation on the 4th November. 
By the active intervention of all opposi- 
tion leaders ........ 

AN HON. MEMBER : Meaningless. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: Is this meaning- 
less?   Do not interrupt always. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): You may ignore 
such interruptions. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN : I will ignore. 
But by the active intervention of all the 

responsible opposition leaders, the Akalis 
were persuaded to postpone it till the 19th 
November when ASIAD was to start. But 
the Government never utilised that oppor- 
tunity also.... (Interruptions). In this 
discussion ,is a ritual, I will stop it. Tf 
this is a ritual, I do not want to speak. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): There is a time 
limit for every party. I cannot allow you 
to go on idefinitely. You have to acco- 
mmodate others. 
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SHRI K. MOHANAN: Give me five 
minutes more. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): I have already 
given you five minutes. I will accommo- 
date to the extent of two minutes more. 
I am sorry I have got to maintain the time 
limit. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN : On the eve of 
the ASIAD on the 18th November, an 
agreement was arrived at. 
3. P. M. 

An aircraft was ready to leave for 
Amritsar. But who went back on that 
agreement? None other than the Cong- 
ress(I) Government. They were never for 
a peaceful settlement of the Punjab issue. 
Subsequently, when the Akalis organised a 
morcha the Government countered it with 
the police and the army and harassed the 
whole Sikh community. This policy of 
the Government weakened the moderate 
Akali leadership which was the main poli- 
tical opponent of the Congress (I) in Pun- 
jab. The delaying tactics of the Govern- 
ment naturally created an atmosphere of 
despair among the followers of the Akali 
party. So, Bhindrawale and his gang 
made full use of this opportunity and they 
extended their terrorist activities through- 
out  Punjab.     These  are the  facts. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): Please conclude 
now. You have extended your time-limit 
by seven minutes.   I cannot allow this. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: In this House, 
the convention is that thirteen minutes 
mean thirty minutes! 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): Please conclude 
now.   I am calling the next speaker. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: Just one or two 
points more, Madam. 

Now, the other aspect of the problem 
is the question of foreign involvement. 
Everybody in this country knows about 
the role played by the USA and Pakistan 
in Punjab. The Government itself has 
mentioned about it on several occasions. 
The Government itself has said—I am 
not quoting here—that there were foreign 

hands behind the terrorist activities. That 
was why we demanded a White Paper 
with full details about the foreign involve- 
ment to expose these forces and to en- 
lighten and mobilise the public against 
those forces. But even in this regard, this 
much-delayed White Paper of the Gov- 
ernment has miserably failed to expose the 
role played by the imperialist forces and 
their agents who were always trying to 
destabilise this country. It is stated that 
the Government has reasons to believe that 
the terrorists were receiving different and 
;idiv: support from certain foreign sources. 
Who are these foreign forces? Which are 
these foreign sources? That is what we 
want to know. But the answer to this 
question is very typical. It states, "How- 
ever, it would not be in the public inte- 
rest to divulge such information.". What 
public interest? This stand taken by the 
Government is itself against the public 
interest and is against the interests «f the 
nation.   That is our charge. 

Now. I come to the question of the 
healing touch, (Time-bell rings). This is 
the last point, Madam. You have distur- 
bed me so much and I am really sorry. 

Now, I come to the question of the 
healing touch. I want a healing touch. 
Everybody from the other side is talking 
about the healing touch. But what are 
they doing now? Instead of applying the 
healing touch, you are only aggravating 
and complicating the issue. The only 
healing touch that we can administer at 
this juncture is the withdrawal of the 
army from the Golden Temple and hand- 
ing over the Golden Temple to the head 
priests so as to enable them to carry out 
the Kar Seva. Now, you have made some 
arrangements and everybody knows it. 

You want to divide the Akali Dal again 
like you brought Bhindrawale against the 
Akali leadership. Everybody knows it. 
(Time Bell rings) It is with political aim. 
Tt will be dangerous to the future of this 
country. I would like to warn you. (In- 
terruptions) 

I am concluding. This is not a White 
Paper. This is a 'waste paper'. The peo- 
ple will throw this 'waste   paper'    along 
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with this anti-national and anti-people 
Government, to the basket, to the waste- 
paper basket. (Interruptions) You will be 
thrown to the wastepaper basket of his- 
tory. (Interruptions) I conclude. (Interrup- 
tions) 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH : I am really 
sorry that the Minister of State in the 
Parliamentary Affairs is sitting in another 
seat and enocuraging other to disrupt 
others.  

SOME HON. MEMBERS: No, no. 
(Interruptions) 

SHR^ K. MOHANAN: Even from your 
side, f«-n the Chair.. .(Interruptions) 

 

SHRI PARVATHANENI UPENDRA 
(Andhra Pradesh): We are discussing a 
very serious matter, the very unfortunate 
situation in Punjab. We are not trying 
to score any points here. It s a national 
issue, and I would request the hon. Mem- 
bers to keep this in mind and not dis- 
turb the speakers. Let them express their 
views. Everybody is guided by national 
interests. (Interruptions} 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: My colleague 
has made a very valid point, particularly 
because in the other House ten hours 
have been allotted for this debate on the 
White Paper. The Minister of Parliamen- 
tary Affairs is here. T am sure he wiH 
agree with me that we also should debate 
it for 10 hours. 

 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH : In the Lok 
Sabha the debate on the White Paper will 
continue up to 4 O'clock in the afternoon. 
Then it will be adjourned and taken up 
tomorrow. We should follow the same 
procedure in the. Rajya Sabha. (Interrup- 
tions) 

THE LEADER OF THE HOUSE 
(SHRI PRANAB KUMAR MUKHER- 
JEE): The debate will be concluded to- 
day. That was the understanding. There 
is no question of changing that. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): May I just add at 
the end that we have a certain tijpe given 
to each political party in this debate... 
(Interruptions) 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: That b the 
total quanatum... (Interruptions) We com- 
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pleted four Bills yesterday. We have time 
at our disposal. We can have the same 
amount of time as the Lok Sabha is tak- 
ing. 

SHRI PRANAB KUMAR MUKHER- 
JEE: I will request that this practice must 
be stopped; we cannot discuss the business 
of the Business Advisory Committee here. 
Unfortunately, this practice is going on 
here. Please conclude it today. I am 
prepared to accommodate the Members if 
they want to speak; we can sit for a lon- 
ger period of time. There would be no 
difficulty to' accommodate. But let us con- 
clude   it today. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA) : Let me make it 
clear. In the case of Mr. Mohanan, your 
party time was 13 minutes; I gave you 
22 minutes.   This is accommodation. 

SHRIMATI KANAK MUKHERJEE 
(West Bengal): How is it possible? {Inter- 
ruptions) 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: For the last 
three years we have been discussing this. 
(Interruptions') 
SHRI PARVATHANENI UPENDRA: 

There is one more submission. Whatever 
the Treasury Benches have to say, it has 
been said in the White Paper. But we have 
got different views. 

SHRI DIPEN GHOSH : The Leader of 
the House has said that it can continue 
till late night. When you are extending 
the total period to be devoted to the dis- 
cussion of this subject, then according to 
the total hours extended, 13 minutes 
should have been extended to 30 minutes. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): You have been 
given 22 minutes based on -that. 
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,  wenever he visited Punjab, he 
was always whisked away by the Akalis. 
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Nobody should    be allowed to remain in- 
side the Gurdwara    who      is a  killer. 

Bhindrawale is an    accused   person;   he 
should get out of this Gurudwara. 
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(Time-bell rings) I am sorry, Madam, I 

said that I wiH meet everything. Let the 
people decide on this issue also, even if 
one other person is asked not to speak. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Go ahead.. . 
(Interruptions)... 

 

 
SOME HON. MEMBERS: No, no. 

SHRI DARBARA SINGH: If an indi- 
vidual has said anything, I do not know. 
But the party.. . (Interruptions) 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: So far as 
my party is concerned, it is very clear. .. 
(Interruptions)... 

SHRI KALYAN ROY (West Bengal): 
Very clear.. . (Interruptions) .. 

SHRI DARBARA SINGH: I know- 
very late. (Interruptions)... 

SHRI J. K. JAIN : See what he has na- 
ralcd about! Farooq, what he was doing.in 
his State. Go and tell your President, 
Mr. Vajpayee. 

. . . (Interruptions) . . . 
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SHRI DARBARA SlNGH: Madarn, 
you may be feeling uneasy at my speech 
but I wiH try to finsh it in a few minutes. 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SMT. MAR- 
GARET ALVA): No. No. Others have 
given up tbe time. 
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Most of the yellow cards are being used
by those  people by third degree means. 

—Gurucharan Singh Tohra has not gone 

to the school even, what to talk of any- 

I am grateful to you for giving me this 

The Sikh is a community. But it is not 

a nation. All Communities taken to- 

gether in the whole of India, are ono 

nation. 
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".. .But that government did not do 
anything for four years to exercise tlie 
friends the white paper has named can- 
not be disputed. 

"The white paper itself bears this 
ent.   The calendar of crimes committed 

by the terrorists during 1981—84 given 
in the annexures runs into 52 pages. 
But the document says not a word, 
if anything at all, on what 
was done t0 check this. 
The white paper is blank about the 
police response to this orgy of violence. 
What were the law^enforcing agencies 
doing all this while? One wishes the 
Thite paper had enlightened us about 
the number of arrests made, the num- 
ber of persons detained, the number of 
prosecutions launched, the number of 
convictions secured etc. 

"The white paper's total silence on 
this facet of the situation is a far more 
eloquent commentary on government's 
impotence and inaction than the statis- 
tics, even if proved, would have been..." 

 
"The white paper is right when it 

takes the Akali Dal to task for its failure 
'to denounce the poisonous propaganda 
of communal fanatics'. But in all fair- 
ness, the white paper should have been 
as forthright in pulling up the ruling 
party's general secretary also who, not 
only omitted to condemn the venomous 
outpourings of Bhindrawale, but posi- 
tively lauded him as a 'religious leader 
with no political amibitions'..." 

(Interruptions} 
SHRI SAT PAUL MITTAL (Punjab): 

This is scandalous... (Interruptions) 
SHRI HANSRAJ    BHARDWAJ:    Wo 

were tlie first to demand action against 
him. He was the first one to demand 
action against him.    (Interruptions') 

SHRIMATI USHA MALHOTRA 
(Himachal Pradesh): He was against vio- 
lence strongly lipe anyone of us. We all 
wanted normalcy in Punjab. (Interruptions) 
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THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): Mr. Mohunta, you 
are wasting your time. Do not waste 
your time. 

SHRI .'SUSHIL CHAND  MOHUNTA: 
I am not wasting my time.   But they are 
interrupting.    (Interruptions) 
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THE  VICE-CHAIRMAN   (SHRIMATI 
MARGARET ALVA): Please conclude. 
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It is a sort of terrorism.    1   think   it
should not be allowed here. 
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SHRI SYED SIBTEY RAZI: Sir, I
have an objection. The practice and con- 
vention of this House is that if the name 
of any Member of the other House is 
teeing taken, the matter relating to him is 
aot discussed in this House. The hon. 
Member is trying to break that con- 
vention. The Prime Minister has 
explained and he is trying to mislead 
the House. We are not sitting here 
Just to be misled by him and let him 
waste the time of the House. 

SHRI NIRMAL CHATTERJEE (West 
Bengal): Sir, they are protesting too 
much.
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You
don't refer to the President. (Interruptions) 
That will not be recorded. 

SHRI NIRMAL CHATTERJEE:    Par- 
ticularly Maharashtra! 
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So reference to President should be ex- 
punged. 

SHRI M. S. GURUPADASWAMY 
(Karnataka): Sir, he is not using the name 
of the President.   He is quoting his words. 

MR.    DEPUTY   CHAIRMAN:     The 
rule is quite clear. 

AN HON. MEMBER:   He has a right 
to quote the document. 

—There is nothing wrong about it. 
What is wrong about it?    (Interruptions') 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: There is 
no question of either supporting the Gov- 
ernment or the Opposition. Rule 238 (vi) 
aays: 

"use the President's name for the pur- 
pose of influencing the debate." 
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MR.   DEPUTY   CHAIRMAN:     This 
should not be recorded. (Interruptions) 
I have already said that this should not be 
recorded. 

SHRI J. K. JAIN:   He should apologise. 
(Interruptions) 

MR. DEPUTY    CHAIRMAN:    Order 
please.    Please take your seat. 

SHRI J. K. JAIN: He has to apologise. 

He* or he should apologise. 

SHRI PRANAB KUMAR MUKHER- 
JEE : Sir, I would like to ______  

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have 
already said it Should not be recorded. 

SHRI PRANAB KUMAR MUKHER- 
JEE : It is not merely a question of ex- 
punction.   Certain types of expressions are 

♦Not recorded. 
Expunged as ordered by the Chair. 

"It is not Sikhs versus Hindus;  it is 
Sikhs versus Indira Gandhi." 
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not permited. Either the Member should 
withdraw it or the Chair should reprimand 
him. And I recommend the Chair to re- 
primand the Member. 

SHRI NARENDRA SINGH : He should 
withdraw it. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please 
take your seat. I have already said it, 
and I think it would Be better if Mr. 
Satya Prakash Malaviya withdraws those 
words because it is not fair and not in 
good taste also to use any expression that 
has been made. Therefore, I think he 
should withdraw it. Or, if he does not 
do it, I think such expressions are not 
desirable, and I think they are irresponsi- 
ble and in bad taste also. 

SHRI PARVATHANENI UPENDRA: 
On a point of order, Sir. 

SHRI J. K. JAIN: Do not alow him to 
speak. He should not be allowed to 
speak. (Interruptions) 

SHRI PARVATHANENI   UPENDRA : 
It has nothing to do with this incident. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: It is the right 
of a Member to raise a point of order at 
any stage.   Nobody can object to it. 

SHRI PARVATHANENI UPENDRA : 
It has nothing to do with this incident I am 
only going to request you. Two or three 
Members are yet to speak from this side. If 
the Prime Minister is not in a hurry, I 
would request her to wait for half-an-hour 
before she speaks.   That is my request. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That de- 
pends upon the programme of the Prime 
Minister. The Home Minister is going to 
reply at the end of the debate. So, I 
request the hon. Prime Minister now. 

SHRIMATI INDIRA GANDHI: Sir, 
we have discussed Punjab on many 
occasions in the previous Sessions. On 
every occasion, I have tried to impress 
upon the Members the importance of 
the subject, the dangers inherent in 
the situation and also the necessity 
for us to regard it not as a Party pro- 
blem but as a national problem and 
to deal with it accordingly.   This    is 

why we tried at quite an early stage 
of the talks to associat* the leaders 
of the  opposition      parties  with  the 
talks.   But if you look at the records 
of debates you will find that in every 
debate there has been more acrimony 
than any desire to work together or 
to find a solution or to ensure    that 
the    bitterness    that    was    growing 
should be softened or a new atmos- 
phere created. Many allegations have 
been made and I need hardly say that 
they are without substance.   I     have 
refuted those where my name      was 
taken.    I did not get up when some 
other  names  were  taken.     But  that 
statement was also made in the   Lok 
Sabha and there it was refuted. When 
that news appeared in the papers,   a 
contradiction was issued the very next 
day, again at a Press Conference and 
some days    later on the floor of the 
Lok  Sabha  itself.    In  spite  of  that, 
these  stories  are repeated  again and 
again and again.    These are not fac- 
tual stories.   I am not going into the 
whole issue.   But this does show, if I 
may say so, a sense not of responsi- 
bility but of irresponsibility; an efTort 
to make the most of a situation, to try 
to get the most political mileage out 
of a situation.    Nobody can say that 
it is to any Government's advantage 
to allow chaos or violence and crime 
in the country.   That goes against the 
Government.    So, to make such    an 
allegation is on the very face of   it 
ridiculous. 

Sir, My party came into being to 
fight imperialism and it did iight 
against imperialism. And after we 
won that fight we began the fight 
against injustice and against commu- 
nalism. We have tried to fight against 
prejudice. Those who were Members 
of earlier Parliaments know how 
strongly I was criticised for attacking 
communalism from some parties sit- 
ting on the other side. But I have 
persisted in this because I believe it *s 
right and I shall persist in doing what 
I consider is right. Sir, today I am 
not just the butt pf attack of a few 
people of the Opp. nition Parties here 
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but I am    the butt of attack of the 
most powerful forces in    the world. 
How  is  it  that  all  these force3   are 
directed  against  me?    Against  India 
also, but more especially (against me. 
There must be a reason 'behind this. 
Is it without  any reason?    Why are 
these attacks not against other peo- 
ple?    Therefore,     we have to think 
about these matters.    I am not con- 
cerned for myself.   I have said before 
in this  House  and  I  say  again that 
I have heard abuse since I was a small 
child.    I have  had      falsehood flung 
against my family and those were the 
days when I used to lose my temper. 
But long ago I had decided that    it 
was not worth my while loosing my 
temper with such people.    If I speak 
loudly it is only to make myself heard. 
The other side has got used to making 
so much noise and, I am sorry to say 
that some of our people have learnt 
this from them. 

Some Hon'ble members asked v;nv 

when we have been free for so many 
years, this question of fissiparous ten- 
dencies,   of   divisive   tendencies  has 
arisen?    It is because we have been 
free for so many years.   In the begin- 
ning  people  did  not  think  that  we 
would     be  able to    keep  our unity. 
They did not think that being as poor 
as we were, being surrounded as we 
are by enemies, we would be able   to 
survive,  that we  would be  able    to 
progress.    But we have belied those 
prophets  of  doom.    We  have  shown 
that  in  spite   of  every   difficulty,   in 
spite of aggression, in spite of natural 
calamities   and   man-made  calamities, 
this   country  has   gone  ahead.    And, 
Sir, if I have a measure of pride, it js 
not of myself; it >s of the Indian peo- 
ple.    They have    come forward and 
they have taken this country ahead. 
But we have given a policy, we have 
given a framework which has enabled 
them t0 do this.   Wa have helped our 
scientists,  our farmers,  our workers. 
We have also made mistakes, as all 
humans do.   And when we have made 
mistakes, we have not hesitated     to 

acknowledge them. We do not m(*e 
our mistakes. But in spite of every- 
thing, today this country has reached 
a level which few developing coun- 
tries have, even though some of them 
have much greater help from outside 
and much greater power and authority 
inside within their countries. We 
have been able to do this in spite of 
active Opposition parties. We have 
been able to do this with every kind 
of other obstacle put in our way. But 
now I am not talking of that. I am 
giving that picture as a background to 
what is now happening. 

As Sardar Darbara Singh just now 
said, Punjab is not one of our poor 
States. It is one of our more pros- 
perous States and part of the pro- 
blem has arisen out of its prosperity. 
Long ago—we have friends from And- 
hra Pradesh here—ther& was a move- 
ment in Telengana. I had not been 
Prime Minister for long before. I sent 
for those people and asked them why 
they were agitating. They replied 
"The State is so stable; we have to do 
something!" It seems a ridiculous 
reply, but such was the situation then. 
Such problems do not arise where 
there is real hardship. 

My family has  stood  against  com- 
munalism, not for any political reason. 
It is    the way    that we have    been 
brought  up;  it is  the way  we have 
lived  all  our lives.    My  family has 
married aCross borders, across all the 
religions in India, as well as in some 
outside   countries.    I    wag    specially 
pleased that my relationship with the 
Sikh community was a close one and 
a very  friendly one.    And  I cannot 
imagine  that  any  Sikh  should  think 
that I    would    do  anything,    tbat I 
would be    responsible for    anything, 
that  could      hurt their feelings.    So 
when     these  demands  came—I shall 
not  go  into  the  background—Sardar 
Darbara Singh has already reminded 
us that the Anandpur Sahib Resolu- 
tion was passed in 1973.    In 1977 the 
Janata Party formed the Government 
here, and the   Akali Dal in Punjab. 
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For three full years they had ample 
opportunity to go into    tlie demands 
and the grievances of Punjab.   Some 
demands are State demands and some 
of    a political party.    At first, some 
peop]e told me that  these  demands 
were not  raised  then.    Subsequently 
some Akalis  told  me that  they  did 
raise  some  demands  but  these  were 
just brushed aside and they were told 
by  the   then  Government   that  they 
could not be considered.   And perhaps 
because they were in the Government, 
they kept quiet.    We did not dismiss 
the Akali Dal Government.   The elec- 
tions of 1980  -were held    when    the 
Akali Government was in power   in 
Punjab and the Janata, I mean    the 
Lok Dal Government was in   power 
at the Centre.   They were there for a 
very short time and so we can  say 
that it was a Janata-Lok Dal combi- 
nation.      Nevertheless    the  Sikhs  pf 
Punjab, along with the ofher people 
of Punjab,  voted  the  Congress       to 
power.   We did not go there by push- 
ing any one aside.   We were voted in 
by ihe people.   What happened efter 
we were voted?    One national leader 
—I will not name his party—I think 
it is well known.. .said to the press— 
or, at least it came out in the press— 
"Now Parliament is irrelevant!" May- 
oe, the Akali Dal took a lesson from 
hat comment.   They also took the at" 
titude that this was the time to agi- 
;ate since there was another Govern- 
nent, especially a Government which 
s sympathetic  to  the  people's  grie- 
vances.      This is the main issue.    If 
his is a mistake, it is because of our 
ympathy, it is because of our friend- 
hip, it is because of our desire not to 
lurt anybody.   I accepted certain de- 
nands.    First only religious demands 
were put forward.    I had two meet- 
ings  with  the  Akali  leadership.    At 
he second meeting I told them clear- 
y how much I could agree to, and 
vhat I could not do for stated reasons. 
It   was    my   impression   that   they 
igreed.    But  when the meeting was 
ill but over, they declared that these 
vere not the real demands.    We had 
:at     for  about  2£  hours.    No  other 
lemand had been mentioned.   It was 

only when we were getting up and I 
had another appointment, it was said 
that the real demand concerns terri- 
tory and river water.    I said that I 
wish they had mentioned this earlier 
so that we could have discussed it, but 
now I had to go; we can take up the 
matter later.   This is how it got post- 
poned.   Then, when I visited the Gur- 
dwara in Delhi I was asked about the 
religious demands.   I could hardly re- 
fuse to tell them.   So I repeated what 
I had told the Akali leadership.   This 
is what I have said consistently, re- 
peatedly, at every meeting.   I went to 
Punjab, I do not remember how many 
meetings I had, but I think we visited 
five cities while this agitation was on. 
I had large gatherings, perhaps larger 
than ever before, and the majority of 
the  audiences  were  Sikhs.    There  I 
told them our difficulties  as well as 
what I could do about the religious 
demands.    I  also     told them about 
other    demands.    I  told  them    that 
although      Justice Shah      had given 
Chandigarh to Haryana, we had taken 
it upon ourselves to say that it would 
go   to   Punjab.    However,   something 
must be given to Haryana in its place. 
Now,  this  was  the  obstacle.    People 
say, why did you not     come t0 an 
agreement?    This    was    the  block— 
What would go to Haryana.   My view 
was that they should sit together and 
decide it amongst themselves. 

With regard to river waters, the 
Janata Party Government had refer- 
red it to the Supreme Court. This 
was taking so long. Both the States 
came to me to express their disap- 
pointment at the delay. The Chief 
Ministers sat together. The Irrigation 
Minister, the Law Minister, the Agri- 
culture Minister were there .and they 
spent hours and hours, and a solution 
was arrived at which we thought was 
helpful to all and would help Punjab 
more, giving Punjab more water than 
it had got before. However, the Akali 
Dal did not agree. Although they 
'realised that by going to Court they 
might get less. Some admitted that 
this was a fair deal, but wanted more 
I agreed to refer the matter to a Tri- 
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bunal. But there was a major ques- 
tion in' my mind and I should like to 
share it with the House, and that was 
the Anandpur Sahib Resolution. At 
no time was I convinced that the 
Akalis had given it up (Interruption) 
Advaniji is sitting here. He came to 
see me with another leadsj- of his 
party. And when I asked them, they 
replied that for the time being the 
Akalis are not going to take this up 
I think the House will agree that this 
is not a good enough answer. 

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: About 
Anandpur Sahib Resolution? For the 
time being? We have said Anandpur 
Sahib Resolution ..........  

SHRIMATI      INDIRA      GANDHI: 

 
"for the time being we will not 

press if" ...........  

SHRI LAL K. ADVANI: It was in 
connection with the territorial de- 
mand. They said for the time being 
we will discuss Chandigarh. I said 
nothing doing. 

SHRIMATI INDIRA GANDHI: It 
may have been a misunderstanding. 
But I had asked a specific question 
about the Anandpur Sahib Resolution 
and so far as I remember I was told 
that for the time being it1 had been 
put aside. Well, I don't think that 
was good enough, because if it is put 
aside, wiH it re-emerge after six 
months? Will it reemerge after one 
year? Whatever it is, the situation 
remained the same. And I did feel 

that the whole matter should be de- 
cided together. 

As far as Chandigarh was concern- 
ed, I had no reservation and I have 
made it clear at numerous public 
meetings both in Punjab and in Har- 
yana and in different parts of the 
country. There the question was what 
Haryana would get. 

I 

First they mentioned some villages. 
Something very peculiar happened in 
between. When the Akali Dal was in 
power in Punjab, they moved a vil- 
lage mapwise. It belonged to one dis- 
trict. Distinctly it was in this part. 
They put it in an adjoining district 
thus cutting off the contiguity of Har- 
yana with the district, in order to 
strengthen the Akali case that that 
area should go to Punjab. Now, right- 
ly or wrongly I did not think this was 
a good thing to do. However, I did 
not ask them to undo it. If Abohar 
and Fazilka were also to go to Pun- 
jab, then Haryana had to be com- 
pensated not just 'n money for their 
new capital, but with some territory. 
If this is mistaken thinking I admit 
to being wrong. It was my view that 
this matter was important and it could 
and should be settled. It was not be- 
yond solution. But somehow we could 
not get near a solution. Their one 
point was: You give us Chandigarh. 
Then we will discuss other things. 
If I had made such a statement I 
have no doubt that there would have 
been trouble in Haryana. In fact at 
that point of time I was meeting lea- 
ders of the opposition parties sepa- 
rately. I think I met most parties and 
some of them supported this stand, 
especially those who have some pre- 
sence in Haryana. One leader accus- 
ed me of trying to shield the Haryana 
Chief Minister. I said that if his 
party agreed, I shall try to persuade 
the Chief Minister. I must say to the 
credit of the Chief Minister that 
although he strongly represented the 
case for Haryana he expressed his 
willingness to do anything that was 
in the larger good. But this was a 
small point. 

Then, as terrorism grew, we did not 
have all detailed information. Some 
of you read foreign news. Very re- 
cently, probably last week, there was 
news of a very important person who 
is now said to have been a spy against 
•his country. He was a high-up in his 
own country. There, in the report the 
writer  says that  in  such  cases  it is 
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impossible to have foolproof evidence 
that could stand up in court. In such 
situations it is not possible. You only 
learn the truth long afterwards, Years 
ago about one country I gave my 
views. When I expressed them, I was 
hooted down by my own party. They 
said that I was imagining things, that 
I saw the foreign hand everywhere, 
Sometime later, books and articles 
came out written by the persons who 
had taken part in those actions. Even 
if we know something it would not 
be in the national interest to reveal 
it to the whole world. 

There are so many aspects. All I 
can say is that at no time have we 
tried to use this situation to our ad- 
vantage. I think the Hon'ble Members 
know that the Akalis themselves do 
not stand united. That was one pro- 
blem. When some were willing to 
accept something, they were worried 
whether they would be called soft by 
their other colleagues. This also came 
into the picture. 

An hon'ble member spoke about a 
letter I wrote. Yes, I wrote to Chau- 
dhury Charan Singh that it was a 
very serious matter to send the police 
or army to a religious place. 

I felt that then and I feel it now. 
If I had to take this action, it is because 
there was no other course open at that 
time. For me it was an extremely 
painful decision to take at that mo- 
ment. I said that there was no way 
out for me. I had no idea that it would 
be such a big action. We had certain- 
ly hoped that it would be over soon. 
Some people ask: "Why did not you 
take it earlier?" We did not take it 
earlier because the Opposition lead- 
ers as well as others were saying, 
"You can come to an understanding 
and if you come to an understanding 
with the Akalis, then perhaps no fur- 
ther action will be necessary." But at 
no time did the Akali Leaders them- 
selves condemn the terrorism or the 
murders. Afterwards when this was 
remarked upon, I think condemnation 
did come rather late in the day. But, 

when they were asked for further 
talks—I am sorry, I do not remember 
the dates—a letter came from Sant 
Longowal to the then Home Minister . 
Shri Sethi, asking, "What do you want 
to discuss?" Shri Sethi wrote: "The 
main problems now left are river wa- 
ters and territory. But we think it 
is very important that the question of 
the Golden Temple being used to col- 
lect arms and to give shelter to cri- 
minals should also be decided.' The 
reply was, "You have introduced an 
extraneous matter." or something like 
that. So} I am just trying to inform 
you about the difficulties which we 
faced in dealing with this problem 
and in coming to a solution: I do not 
want to blame anybody. I am not 
blaming the Opposition leaders. I 
am not blaming the Akali Party. But 
I want to make it clear that the action 
we took was certainly not against the 
Sikh community; it was not against 
the Golden Temple oi* the Sikh religi- 
on in any way; and it was not even 
against the Akali Dal. It was against 
only those people who had gained 
control of the situation. And I might 
say that at the very first meeting with 
the Akali Dal, I had said to them, 
"You are threatening an agitation. 
You are saying that it will be a non- 
violent agitation. I believe you. I 
believe in your sincerity. But I have 
some experience of these agitations 
and I know that wherever they have 
started, somehow violence has come 
in. It may not be your people. But 
there are people who want to create 
chaos who want to have violence and 
there are also criminals who think 
that they should take advantage of 
the situation. We have seen this not 
only in agitations, but also in com- 
munal riots. A lot of people come in, 
people who feel that they can settle 
their own scores." I also told them: "I 
don't doubt your sincerity. But I 
do doubt your capability to keep these 
elements out, should they decide to 
come in." Now, there is talk of a se- 
parate State. Where did that emerge? 
[ am not going into old history. But 
in the last few years it has emerged 
outside the country largely from am- 
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ong people who are not Indian citi- 
zens, people who have become pros- 
perous and rich in foreign lands, no 
doubt by their own land labour. Ne- 
vertheless, they are people who are 
not conversant with the situation in 
India or what is in the interest of 
the Sikhs. There are communities in 
India which are not getting full jus- 
tice in employment an^ in various 
matters. But the same cannot be said 
about the Sikhs. They have come up 
by their hard labour by their ability. 
They have come to the top in almost 
every sphere of activity. At one time 
or another, they have been in every 
sphere. Has anybody stopped them? 
Have we prevented them? Has any- 
body resented their being there? In 
fact, at one time, when we wanted 
to publish the figures of how many 
Sikhs are in various services, it was 
said that there might be a feeling 
against them amongst others in the 
country and that therefore, it might 
be better not to publish them. So, all 
these things must be gone into in some 
depth and with some seriousness and 
with a genuine desire to see what can 
be done. 

"Kar Seva", some say, is done also 
to divide the Sikhs. I certainly do not 
think that it would divide the Sikhs. 
I am firm that there can be no sepa- 
rate State. I am firm that no reli- 
gious place or, for that matter, any 
place should become an arsenal or a 
shelter for criminals. (Interruptions). 
I am firm that the sort of thing that 
has happened in the Golden Temple 
should not be repeated anywhere. 
(Interruptions). Sir, if you wiH bear 
with me a little longer, I have met 
many Sikhs even on the day 
of the action—they knew it had 
been taken; they were not brou- 
ght by anybody. They came on 
their own. Other Sikh groups have 
also come. Sometimes they had gri- 
evances; sometimes they just come 
like that. The nearer they were to 
Amritsar, the greater their feeling. 
When I went to Amritsar, I was not 
able to talk to many people but there 

were people with me who did. While 
I was talking with the officers out- 
siders were not allowed. The' rest 
of my party went to the city and met 
people. Sikhs, told them—a taxi dri- 
ver, shopkeeper and so on—that those 
who had not been in Amritsar could 
not imagine what life was like. He 
said: "I do not belong to any party; 
in fact, I voted for the Akali party in 
the last election, but when I left home 
my wife did not know whether I would 
come back or not and if there was 
a noise near the door we did not know 
whether we should open it. This was 
the cwidition in which we were liv- 
ing." 

Some people have criticised the ad- 
ministration.   An   answer     has   been 
given   how,   there   were  people   who 
had infilterated into it,    how an at- 
mosphere of fear prevailed.   We have 
seen in Assam and Punjab that offi- 
cers  are  threatened,  not  just  them- 
selves but their whole families.    It is 
not easy for people to discharge their 
duties   properly when so     menaced. 
Those who made arrests were killed. 
Those who gave information in spite 
of threats were killed.    Obviously, if 
thje   poflice   and'  para-military   forces 
could  have  dealt  with  the  situation 
there would have been no need for the 
army.     But  such a  situation  arose. 
Some States are worried that I want 
to take greater powers for the Centre. 
After all, I am not going to be at the 
Centre all the time.    But I have to 
think of what will happen to the co- 
untry in the years to come     I am 
not making a proposition.    I am ex- 
pressing a thought which   has   come 
mainly from the minorities. The mi- 
nority in Punjab happens to be Hindu. 
But the minorities in other places are 
Muslims or Christians or Sikhs.   This 
suggestion originally came up in the 
National    Integraton      Council    that 
our forces should be mixed, so that if 
the local officials come under the local 
pressure of the majority community 5 
then there would be some others to 
help the minorities.    During the lan- 
guage riots in Assam,  there was no 
question of Hindus and Muslims; the 
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question was ol Hindu and Muslims 
who spoke Assamese, and those who 
spoke Bengali. The places where we 
had no trouble were the districts 
where the Magistrates or Collectors 
were either Sikhs or South Indians. 
Where there were Assamese or Ben- 
galis there was trouble. Not because 
they did not want to do anything. 
They did their best. I know they did 
their best. Nobody shirked his duty. 
But a situation developed which made 
it difficult. Such was the situation 
here also. Some people who after- 
wards wanted to resign and so on ad- 
mitted they had been put there by 
the terrorists, they had taken oaths 
in the Golden Temple. 

So the whole situation is an ex- 
ceedingly complex one and you can- 
not possibly put all these complexities 
and details into the White Paper. The 
White Paper has to be a bare state- 
ment of facts. In thiss I must ad- 
mit, we were guided by the bureau- 
cracy. We were advised that this is 
the framework of any White Paper. 
And we have to adhere to it. 

Then, some hon'ble member asked: 
where did the seeds of the trouble 
lie? The seeds of the trouble lay in 
the Anandpur Sahib Resolution and 
what is now being projected for ins- 
tance, in the foreign Press and me- 
dia. Much of the foreign press has done 
everything possible to project our ac- 
tion as anti-Sikh. The Sikhs as a 
whole did not take it like that and 
even now they are not taking it like 
that. All Sikhs are not Akalis, al- 
though all Akalis are Sikhs. Another 
question which has arisen is whether 
in the political sphere there should be 
(purely ./religious parties. They can 
exist. But should they be in politi- 
cs? Anyhow, these are matters for 
discussion and debate later en. 

I was talking about Kar Seva. It is 
our information that the Akali Dal 
and a few other people would like to 
keep the Akal Takht as a damaged 
monument. I think you will all agree 

that should this happen, the seeds of 
bitterness will go very deep down in 
the hearts of the Indian people and 
between communities. That is why 
we were anxious that the Takht should 
be rebuilt and this is being done. If 
the Akali Dal leadership want to 
break it downs it is their business 
But we should leave it as we found 
it before. Not exactly as we found 
it before because then it was an ares- 
nal and there were people living in it. 
I mean the building as it was before. 
This is our only motive. Initially, some 
other people had also agreed to take 
charge of the Kar Seva. But whe- 
ther they were threatened or what 
happened I do not know, they with- 
drew, f 

Courage is a much misused word. 
It would be very wrong for a com- 
munity to think that it is courageous 
to hide in a shelter and to come out 
to kill innocent people. That is not 
my idea of courage and I don't thin!? 
it should be anybody's idea of courage. 
What was happening before? People 
were going on motorcycles and some- 
times killing people against whom 
they had a grouse. They were news- 
paper people who had written against 
them. But they were also killing in- 
nocent people, sometimes a milkman 
or a shopkeeper. This is not courage. 
To project it now as courage is not 
keeping up to the high traditions of 
the Sikh community. We have held 
the Sikhs in high regard for their 
qualities. We know that the burden 
of partition fell mostly on them and 
on Bengal. But the Sikhs managed 
it well. My Bengali friends will ex- 
cuse me, I hope. The people of Punjab 
proceeded in a much more self-reliant 
manner. They built up Punjab and 
helped to build the country. That is 
why we admire them. All the com- 
munities of India have the same pro- 
blems. All the communities have suf- 
fered. The British said that certain 
people are martial people and certain 
other people are not martial people. 
For instance, the people from the 
South were declared as non-martial 
people. (Interruptions). In fact, they 
are our best soldiers. 
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SHRI JASWANT SlNGH; Madras 
regiment  was  the  first  regiment. 

SHRIMATI INDIRA GANDHI: 
Somehow it was said that they were 
not martial. I would not. say so for 
Tamil Nadu or for any other State. 
There was a theory of the British 
that some people are martial and some 
are not. What I am saying is that 
given the proper nourishment and 
training, everybody can do well. Ob- 
viously, everybody cannot fight. I 
cannot say that I can fight with a gun. 
Neither my mentality nor my physi- 
que is like that. But the point is there 
are people in any community who can 
do anything provided they are given 
the chance. We shoulAnot distinguish 
whether a person comes from one 
community or  another  community. 

But the Sikhs have proved them- 
selves and, therefore, the whole na- 
tion has praised them. I have been 
praising them since I started making 
public speeches even before I became 
the Congress President in the late 50s. 
So; it has nothing to do with trying 
to win over friends now. Anybody 
can see what I said at that time. 

I do not want to go into the de- 
tails of who built up whom, because 
nobody built up any person. It is the 
situation and the circumstances which 
built up a person and that person took 
advantage of it. Whether he really 
was in control of the situation him- 
self, I am not in a position to say. If 
T did not take any names it is because 
of this. Otherwise also. T rarely take 
names. But J feel that there were and 
are certain forces behind these hap- 
penings, some may b° within the coun- 
try,  some be outside. 

These are serious matters. I hope 
that in the rest of the debate we can 
keep it at a more serious level. It 
is no use reading out from magazines; 
I have heard their names but I have 
not allowed them into my home be- 
cause I was told that they should not 
enter a decent home. So, what does 
(it matter what some people write? 
People write with their own motives, 
their own bias.    And I am not inte- 

rested in what they write. But I 
am interested that something has hap- 
pened. Good, bad or whatever, it has 
happened. What do we do in the fu- 
ture? Do we want now to build the 
bridges that have broken, do we want 
to reinforce the friendship that has 
broken or do we want to say that, 
"No. Because the elections are com- 
ing we must fight and, therefore, the 
breach also must remain?" This is 
the question before the House. And 
it is for all our Members, no matter 
on What side they are sitting, to con- 
sider. 
Thank you. 

MR.    DEPUTY    CHAIRMAN:     Shri 
Indradeep Sinha. 

 

We have to build the bridges    that 
have  been  broken. 
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MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN:    I   may 
request one more speaker from this side. 
Shri Hayat Ulla Ansari. 

SHRI K. MOHANAN: Tomorrow, 
Sir. . . . {Interruptions). 

SOME HON. MEMBERS:    Tomorrow, 
Sir. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Tomor- 
row we shall start this debate at twelve 
and all other business will be taken up 
after the conclusion of this business—Cal- 
ling Attention, Special Mentions and all 
those things. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Question Hour?.. 
(Interruptions) ... 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That is 
not in doubt. Question Hour is always 
there. 

SHRI V. GOPALASAMY (Tamil Nadu): 
We have scored this point only today! 

 
The House then adjourned at 

thirteen minutes past six of the 
clock till eleven of the clock on 
Wednesday, the 25th July 1984. 


